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ESSEX PLACE-NAMES PROJECT.

The Essex Place-names Project is a County-wide survey to record place- and field-names from historical documents such as Tithe maps and apportionments, estate maps, sale 

and auction catalogues, conveyances, terriers, deeds, rolls, inquisitions and surveys.

The second element of the Project is to investigate on-the-ground visible remains which correspond to the Place-names for actual or potential archaeological, agricultural and industrial 

sites, and to record natural (topographical) and man-made features which may relate to the Place-name. This involves field-survey in rural and outside investigation in built-up areas.

It is anticipated that the Project will lead to identification of archaeological sites and lost historic buildings;  it will enable analysis of indicators of early settlement, land  holding, agricultural and industrial practices of the County.  It will refine the more precise meaning of descriptive words and elements used by earlier settlers as they gave names appropriate to the topography of the landscape of their time.

For convenience the surveys are based on the parish, recognising that present civil parish boundaries are not necessarily identical to former ecclesiastical boundaries.  Local Recorders 

are supplied with templates of Record Forms to ensure consistency of recording across the County, and forward completed forms to a Central Coordinator for  transfer to a county 

computer database which is available to researchers on the internet at www.essex.ac.uk/history/esah/essexplacenames, and updated periodically. 

This publication presents part of the information recorded from the Tithe or Estate Award and Map, and from other documents for this parish. The full record is contained on the master 

database at Essex County Council (Historic Environment Section) and on the (above) website. Parish books are available from the Publications Manager, Essex Record Office, Wharf Road, Chelmsford CM2 6YT, on disc or in hard copy or may be downloaded from the website link ‘Books’ on the Home page. Please notify errors to the Project Coordinator at the Essex Record Office. 

      THE TITHE  MAP AND APPORTIONMENT.
Since medieval times a tenth of the produce of land and stock had been paid by landholders to the church.  At the Dissolution of the  Monasteries, the property of many religious houses, 

including the right to collect tithes, passed into lay hands.  The Tithe Commutation Act which received Royal assent on 13th August 1836 abolished a rent payable in kind and 

substituted rent-charges apportioned on each plot or parcel. The tithe-rent  payable was assessed on the average value of  wheat, barley and oats and was to fluctuate with price movements.

The commutation could be by voluntary agreement between the local owners and payers or, if agreement failed, could be compulsorily imposed by commissioners.  A Valuer was to be 

appointed to apportion the rent of each parcel of land and tenants could deduct that rent-charge from their rent paid to the landlord.  The task fell to the Tithe Commissioners to produce a 

map and an Apportionment (Award).  A large-scale survey was produced for over 70% of England and Wales in the following 9 years, and about another 8% up to 1855. Most of the 

parishes in Essex were surveyed.  The map scales vary. The Award records ownership, tenancy and land-use, field by field and parcel by parcel (often quoting the field name) with the 

ground area and rent-charge.  

Land that was tithe-free tends to be less accurately mapped and contains few if any of the details recorded for those parcels subject to tithe.  Rights of way and  roads also tend to be 

neglected. Boundaries of the tithe areas are shown as are some natural features such as streams, ponds, gardens, greens and commons. Buildings are often shown coloured red if dwellings 

or grey if  not.  Because the Award may have been agreed only some time after the map was finished, discrepancies occur between the two.  Enclosure Awards, when extant, usually date to the 18th and early 19th centuries.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 J.Kemble.
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Bartlow End Hamlet (in Freshwell Hundred).
The Enclosure map of Ashdon and Bartlow Hamlet (Essex Record Office D/DQY 37, Q/RDC 39b), dated c.1850, was surveyed at a scale of 26.6” to a mile and measures 106”x91”.
The Enclosure map of Ashdon and Bartlow Hamlet (ERO: D/DQY 36), dated 1846 revised in 1850, was surveyed at a scale of 13.3” to a mile and measures 76”x60”.  The Commissioners were Robert Franklin and Martin Nockolds.
In 1247 John de Wangeford held 2½ acres in Berkelaw from Richard and Alina de Kirkeby for one sore sparrow-hawk (Kemble, 2007).  Old English (aet) beorca hlawum, ‘at the mound with birch-trees’ refers to the 2nd century Romano-British burial mounds, originally eight in number, since 1990 in Cambridgeshire (VCH, 1963; Kemble, 2009). Formerly Bartlow End was part of Ashdon parish. Bartlow is in Cambridgeshire.
In Domesday Book, 1086, Stevington End, Stauintuna, was held by Hervey from Count Alan which Edeva had held for 5 acres before 1066.  Reginald held 30 acres from Aubrey de Vere in Stauintuna (later Waltons in Ashdon) which Alwin had held and Ordric held 15 acres. Tihel the Breton held Steintuna (recte Steuituna) in lordship which Oslac, a free man, held before 1066 as a manor for 42½ acres.  Frodo, the brother of Abbot Baldwin of Bury St Edmund’s, held two free men in Staumtuna (recte Stauintuna) whom Ordgar had annexed (Morris, 1983). Reaney (1935) translates this from Old English tun, ‘The settlement of Styfa’.
Waltons, one mile northeast of All Saints Church in Ashdon, damaged by fire in 1954, has a Georgian front of c.1730.  Walton Park Cottages are the converted 17th century wing of the old house with stables (Pevsner, 2007). The River Bourne joins the River Granta (Cam) at Bartlow.
The Hundred name is recorded in Domesday Book as Frossewella, Frosscewella, and as frosseuuelle in Inquisitio Eliensis, 1086.  This is translated from O.E. forsc wielle, ‘frogs’ stream or spring’, a reference to a headwater of the River Pant.  Christy (1926) identifies the spring as that serving the little lake by Little Sampford Hall, and that the moot was by the ford close by or at a moated enclosure 300 yards to the west, by the road to Great Sampford.

Place-names from other documents are shown in the table below.  See also “The Place-names of Ashdon”, www.essex.ac.uk/history/esah/essexplacenames.
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The Place-names of Bartlow End. (Enclosure Award, ERO: D/DQy 36).
	Parish
	Parish
	Rec Offce
	Ref. No.
	Date of Doc
	Place-name
	Alias
	Gd Ref
	x
	y
	Owner
	Other information

	Bartlow End
	Ashdon
	ERO
	D/DQy 36
	1846
	The Breeds
	
	TL
	584
	446
	
	detached

	Bartlow End
	
	ERO
	D/DQy 36
	1846
	Twenty Acres
	
	TL
	589
	445
	Lord Maynard
	detached

	Bartlow End
	
	ERO
	D/DQy 36
	1846
	Great Bartlow field
	
	TL
	590
	439
	
	detached

	Bartlow End
	Ashdon
	ERO
	D/DQy 36
	1846
	Little Bartlow field
	
	TL
	585
	435
	
	

	Bartlow End
	
	ERO
	D/DQy 36
	1846
	Wood Shot
	
	TL
	593
	436
	
	detached

	Bartlow End
	Ashdon
	ERO
	D/DQy 36
	1846
	Holden Common
	
	TL
	590
	426
	
	

	Bartlow End
	
	ERO
	D/DQy 36
	1846
	Gore field
	
	TL
	588
	422
	
	

	Bartlow End
	
	ERO
	D/DQy 36
	1846
	Chapel Croft
	
	TL
	600
	425
	
	

	Bartlow End
	
	ERO
	D/DQy 36
	1846
	Great Hall field
	
	TL
	605
	424
	Lord Maynard
	

	Bartlow End
	
	ERO
	D/DQy 36
	1846
	Great Mores Croft
	
	TL
	606
	420
	Lord Maynard
	

	Bartlow End
	
	ERO
	D/DQy 36
	1846
	Old Hall
	
	TL
	599
	419
	
	

	Bartlow End
	Ashdon
	ERO
	D/DQy 36
	1846
	Mill field
	
	TL
	592
	414
	
	

	Bartlow End
	
	
	OS 6" map
	c1880
	Stevington End
	Stauintuna, Steuituna, Staumtuna, 1086,DB
	TL
	598
	428
	
	

	Bartlow End
	
	
	OS 6" map
	c1880
	Woodmore Common
	
	TL
	602
	420
	
	

	Bartlow End
	
	
	OS 6" map
	c1880
	Lawkens Lane
	
	TL
	601
	426
	
	

	Bartlow End
	
	
	OS 6" map
	c1880
	Kate's Lane
	
	TL
	595
	419
	
	

	Bartlow End
	
	
	OS 6" map
	c1880
	Sandons Farm
	Sandons, 1777,C
	TL
	598
	418
	
	John de Sandon, 1303, FA

	Bartlow End
	
	
	OS 6" map
	c1880
	Wilsey
	Wylsey hall als Wyuelesheyhall, 1553,Recovery Rolls
	TL
	609
	405
	
	Humphrey de Wyueleshey, 14th cent, Queens

	Bartlow End
	
	
	OS 6" map
	c1880
	Brown's Grove
	
	TL
	610
	413
	
	

	Bartlow End
	
	
	OS 6" map
	c1880
	Grigg's Grove
	
	TL
	609
	409
	
	John Grigge, 1333,Ipm

	Bartlow End
	
	
	OS 6" map
	c1880
	Bourne
	Bourn, 1777,C
	TL
	610
	409
	
	Eudo Ateborne, 1278,Ass 

	Bartlow End
	
	
	OS 6" map
	c1880
	Home Wood
	
	TL
	596
	436
	
	

	Bartlow End
	
	
	OS 6" map
	c1880
	Longmead Grove
	cf. Longmedowe, 1538,LP
	TL
	604
	407
	
	

	Bartlow End
	
	
	Chapman, André map
	c1777
	Stockings (pt)
	
	TL
	594
	442
	
	

	Bartlow End
	
	
	Chapman, André map
	c1777
	Waltons
	Waltons, 1503,Ct Rolls
	TL
	594
	431
	Lord Maynard
	detached. Richard de Walton, 1259, Morant

	Bartlow End
	
	
	Chapman, André map
	c1777
	Over Hall
	Overhal(l), 1333,AD ii, 1374,Close Rolls
	TL
	600
	427
	
	

	Bartlow End
	
	
	Chapman, André map
	c1777
	Bartlow Hills
	Berkelawe, 1247-70, FeetFine
	TL
	587
	449
	
	detached. OE beorce hlaw = birch tree hill


For abbreviations see Reaney, P., Place-names of Essex, Cambridge 1935; and Kemble,  J., Essex Place-names Places, Streets & People. Historical Publications, 2007, p153.

Bartlow End.
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                                                                                                                                     6 inches = 1 mile
                                                                                                                                      Ordnance Survey  c. 1880

                                                                                                                                      Sheets 3, 4
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   Bartlow End in the County of Essex.
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